# Complio Student Guide

### Contents

1	Getting Started	2
	1.1. Creating Your Complio Account	2
	1.2. Placing an Order	3
	1.3. Navigating Your Complio Account	6
2	Compliance Tracking	10
	2.1. Viewing Requirements	10
	2.2. Submitting Documentation	11
	2.3. Exceptions	14
	2.4. Tracking Your Compliance Status	15
3	Background Screening	16
	3.1. Criminal Background Checks	16
	3.2. Drug Screening	18
	3.3. Fingerprinting	19
Fr	requently Asked Questions	20
SI	tudent/Applicant Support	23



© American DataBank 2020

### **1** Getting Started

### **1.1. Creating Your Complio Account**

<page-header><complex-block><complex-block><complex-block>

To begin, access the unique Complio website for your institution.

Click **"Create Account"** to begin setting up your Complio account. If you already have an account, select **"Member Login"** instead.

Complio requires you to create a unique username and a secure password to protect the information within your account.

**Use the dropdowns** to select your state, city, and ZIP code.

Once you've entered your information, click **"Create Account and Proceed"**.

Create an accoun	t							
Please fill the form below to	create an account.	The item	s with * are required.					
Personal Information								
First Name:*			Middle Name:*	If you don't have a midd	ile n	Last Name:*		
			I don't have a Middle	Name.				
Do you have an SSN ?:*	● Yes ○ No		Social Security Number:*		٦.			
□ I have an Alias or Maide	n name							
Gender:*	Select	•	Date of Birth:*	mm/dd/yyyy				
Contact Information								
Primary Email:*			Confirm Primary Email:*					
Secondary Email:			Confirm Secondary Email:					
Address 1:*			Address 2:					
Country:*	UNITED STATES	•	State:*	Select	-	City:*	Select	
Zip Code:*	Select	•	County:*	Select	-			
Primary Phone:*	(_)··		Secondary Phone:	()		Accessibility Mode:	🔿 Enable 🔍 Disab	le
Account Information				the second second second				
Username:*			Check					
Username is required.								
Password:*			Confirm Password:*					
Password is required.								

© American DataBank 2020

					_	
	Complio Account Created for Daniel Test 🔉 🔤		×	ē	ß	
P	non-reply@americandatabank.com <u>via</u> amazonses.com F to delsenberg+239 →	Fri, Oct 9, 12:48 PM (7 days ago)	☆	*	:	Ond
	Dear Daniel Test,					VOU
	This is to confirm that your Complio account has been created with Lane Community College. Your username is lanetestDE.					you
	You're almost done setting up your account! Please click the below link in order to activate your account:					rec
ſ	https://Lane.complio.com/Login.aspx?UsrVerCode=bfcaa5472c4d984b84824ce809860e05				-	em
	If the link does not work for you, please copy the URL and paste it into your browser.					in t
	If you have any questions or need further assistance, our support team is here for you! You can call us at 1-800-200-0853 or	r Chat with a Live representative	(during	busine	ss	
	hours). You can also email us any time at complio@americandatabank.com.					set
	Thank you,					Cor
	American DataBank - Complio					
	Account Support					
	Phone: 1-800-200-0853					
	Hours: M-F 7am - 6pm MST; Sat. 8am - 5pm MST complio@americandatabank.com					

Once you've created your account, you'll receive an activation email. **Click the link** in the email to finish setting up your Complio account.

### 1.2. Placing an Order

The first time you log into Complio, you will be prompted to place an order.

Click "Get Started" to begin the ordering process.

Welcome!	
Welcome to the COMPLIO community. Your account is now setup, and you are ready to place your order! Once you login, your COMPLIO account will walk you through the process required for you to be COMPLIANT. Help is always available – just call us at (800) 200-0853.	
Get	t Started

The system will prompt you to select your program first. Navigate through the dropdowns, selecting the option that applies to your program, until there are no more dropdowns. Then click **"Load Packages."** If you don't know which option to choose in any of the dropdowns, reach out to your school administrators, as they are the ones who determine these options.

Home » Order Create Order (Step 1)					
Please contact your institut Identifying Information	ion if you are unsure what	t package(s) you need to order.			
Institution Name:	ADB University				
Select Department: *	Teacher Education	<ul> <li>Select Education Type:*</li> </ul>	Elementary Education - B.A.	▼ Select Location:*	SELECT
			Load Packages		SELECT
			2000 Fuchages		Utah
					Pennsylvania
					,



If you have any questions about which packages you're supposed to select, reach out to your school administrators, as they set the compliance requirements for your program.

Once you've selected your package(s), click "Next" to proceed.



4

Depending on the package(s) you've selected, you may be prompted to enter additional information. For example, if you order a background screening package that includes an employment verification, you will be asked to provide employer information.

I have worked in the Past (provide most recent employer)*	True	Company Name*	Please enter Company Name
Address2		Country	UNITED STATES
City*	Select	Postal Code	Select
Supervisor's Name	Please enter City	Your Position/Title	

		_	
I Accept and Agree to the above Terms of Use:		You will then be prompted to agree to and sign the Complio Terms of Use and Disclosure & Authorization forms.	
☑ I Agree Sign Here Cle	ar Signature	To sign these forms, scroll dow to the signature box. Use your mouse or trackpad to sign in the box.	
Click "Next" to reload the document with your submitted signature now displayed.	I Accept and Agree to t	the above Terms of Use: I Agree Date Signed	2/2020
Once you've signed the forms, click "Next" to continue to payment.	👍 Pr	<mark>⊘ I Agree</mark> Previous Next ➡	

Payment options vary by institution, so be sure you select the right option for you.

### Some common payment options:

**Credit Card/Debit Card** – Pay directly using a credit/debit card. Payment is processed immediately

**Invoice with Approval** – The cost of your order will be covered by your institution; however, the order requires school approval in order to be processed.

**Money Order** – Pay directly by sending a money order or check to: American DataBank, 110 16<sup>th</sup> Street 8<sup>th</sup> Floor, Denver, CO 80202. <u>PLEASE NOTE</u>: If you choose to pay by money order, your subscription and/or background check will not begin until American DataBank receives payment.

Follow the steps to complete payment and click "Continue" to finalize your order.

### 1.3. Navigating Your Complio Account

Your Complio dashboard displays the details of your background screenings and compliance subscriptions.

complio 🕈 Home	Wekome Test, Daniel	Institute ADB University
American Dat		Documents Video Tutorials Place Order
Username: DannyTest DT Institute:	:= Immunization/Compliance	
ADB University	Overall Compliance Status Not Compliant 📀 (2/11 Compliant)	View Subscription (47 Days Lef
Change A Edit Profile	Compliance Category/Item (Expand / Collasse) Requirement Explanation .	Status
Get Started Know how to become compilant?           Order History	😢 Tuberculosis	+ Enter Requirements Incomplete
Message Center	🔕 Varicella	- Enter Requirements Incomplete
Profile Sharing	S Influenza	+ Enter Requirements Incomplete
	🚱 Hepatitis B	+ Enter Requirements Incomplete

8) Background Screening

C Clinical Rotation

Overall Compliance Status Not Compliant 🔇 (2/11 Compliant)

At the top of your dashboard, you will see tabs for Immunization/Compliance Tracking, Background Screening, and/or Clinical Rotations (depending on what packages you've ordered). You might not have all three tabs on your profile.

**Immunization/Compliance:** If you have a compliance tracking subscription, this will be where you can see the list of compliance requirements, as well as the status of each. This will also be where you submit compliance information for each of these requirements (see "Submitting Documentation").

**Background Screening:** If you have ordered a background check (including any drug screening or fingerprinting checks), you will be able to view the details of your order in this tab. Additionally, once the background check is complete, you will be able to view the results here.

<u>**Clinical Rotation:**</u> If your school has assigned you to a clinical rotation in Complio, you will be able to view the clinical compliance requirements here. You will also be able to view your previous clinical rotations here.

On the left-hand side of your dashboard, you will find additional menu options for managing your Complio account:

**Edit Profile** – Edit your personal information, manage notifications, set up two-factor authentication

**Get Started** – Opens a popup with basic instructions on using Complio

**Order History** – View past orders, renew and change subscriptions

**Message Center** – View and send messages securely within your Complio account

**Report** – Generate a one-page "passport report" of your compliance details

**Profile Sharing** – Share your compliance information with a third-party

**Video Tutorials** – Access a library of video tutorials on topics ranging from submitting documents for review to profile sharing

**Required Documents** – View a list of required compliance documents for your institution and/or your clinical rotations

**Job Opportunities** – View job openings posted in Complio





Lastly, at the top right of your dashboard are additional options for managing your account.

- Upload Documents Access and manage your Document Library; upload additional documents as needed
- Video Tutorials Access a library of video tutorials on topics ranging from submitting documents for review to profile sharing
- > Place Order Begin the order process for a new package or subscription



9

## 2 Compliance Tracking

### 2.1. Viewing Requirements

© American DataBank 2020

When you log into Complio, a popup appears detailing the requirements you are still noncompliant for, or which you will fall out of compliance for soon.

e your last login 0 item(s) have been marked "meets requirements", 0 item(s) have been marked "does not meet requirements", D are still pending review.						
ou are still not compliant in the following category(s):						
<ul> <li>Tuberculosis</li> <li>Hepatitis B</li> <li>Student Handbo</li> </ul>	ook Signature Page					
		ng expiration cat	egory(s):			
u have follow	Expiration Date		egory(s):			
u have follow			egory(s):			
u have follow Category Name Hepatitis B	Expiration Date 10/2/2020 10/22/2020		egory(s):			

Your dashboard shows you the list of compliance requirements you must complete for your institution. To download a list of your requirements and the details of each one, click **"Requirement Explanation**."

- Immunization/Compliance ADB University Demo Package	Clinical Rotation	
Overall Compliance Status Not Complia	ant 😢 (7/11 Compliant)	
Compliance Category/Item ( <u>Expand</u> / <u>Collapse</u>	Requirement Explanation	
Required Compliance Category	у	

### 2.2. Submitting Documentation

Before you can start submitting your compliance requirements, you will need to gather your documentation.

You may need to contact your healthcare provider to obtain some of the required documentation.

If the documentation is not a digital file you can take a photo or scan it.

	Healthcare PR Healthcare	American	Train	EALTHC ining nter Name	AREPR	TC ID #	
	Provider	Heart Association.	TC Info	City, State	ZIP	TC Phone	
	This card certifies that the above individual has completed the cognitive and skills evaluations the curriculum of the American Heart Associatio	s in accor vacu		VACCINE TYPE	DATE GIVEN dada en la fecha	DOCTOR OR CLINIC doctor o clinica	DATE NEXT DUE próxima vacui
Demo, Francisco, M, 01/01, 123-456-7890 MRN: 123	Providers (CPR and AED) Program.	Hepatitis B (e.g., HepB Hib, DTaP-H IPV, HepA-H	B, HepB-				
			3				
Accession ID: MR9876 Order Date: 08/01/2016	Received: 08/05/2016		4		#3 giver	before age 24	weeks
Coll. Date: 08/01/2016	Report: 08/05/2016	Diphtheria, Tetanus,					
Requesting Physician: Dr. ADB	Ordering Physician: Dr. ADB	Pertussis (Differia Tr	Tátanos				
1 DIOTU A 709	TER VIDUE AR /IGG)	Tos Ferina, (e.g., DTaP, DTaP-Hib, D	P. DT, DTaP- 3				
	TER VIRUS AB (IGG)	HepB-IPV, T Tdap)	Td, 4				
NAME VALUE VARICELLA ZOSTER VIRUS 1.23 (ir			5				
ANTIBODY (IGG)	ation of Results		6				
Index Explana	CION OI REDUILO	Arrest and the second s	1				
< or = 0.90 Negativ	<sup>ve - 1</sup> Anthem.	Anthem Bron DirectAccess cach	ss wittsA				
	John Q. Member Identification Number 123X45678				given	i before age 12	month
	Rx Bin 0 PCN	0RWY 013858 A4 WLHA 040	e Out 90 nce In				
	Select Rx List						
	Dental Program Prime	Pathway	X PPO	FRO R	- k		
			_		_		
				nmon for	mate ir	scluding	
C	omplio can accept file	es or mos	τ сог		mats, n	icidaling.	

TXT

RTF

TIFF

GIF

PNG



To submit a requirement, locate it from your dashboard. Click **Enter Requirements** to open the compliance category.

Select Browse to select the appropriate

document file from your computer.

When submitting documents, you can also leave a brief note, which will be visible to your school administrators. This step is **optional**.



### TIP:

You can also choose your compliance document(s) from the "Document" dropdown. The options in this dropdown will include anything you've previously uploaded, as well as any documents in your Document Library.

Complete the below fields for Hepatitis B Titer						
Document:	SELECT 🔻	Date:				
Results:	Positive 🔻					
Unload Additional Documents:						



### **IMPORTANT!**

Some compliance categories may require multiple items. For example, an immunization requirement may require you to have 2 documented doses of the vaccine. If that's the case, make sure you submit documentation for both the first dose and the second dose.

### Once you've submitted...

If American DataBank is reviewing your document submissions, your submission will be **reviewed within 1-3 business days**.

If an item is ever rejected, you will receive an email notification indicating why the item was rejected and recommending steps to take to become compliant.

### 2.3. Exceptions

If you cannot complete a compliance requirement—for example, if you are allergic to a vaccine—your school may allow you to apply for an exception.

To apply for an exception, locate the requirement on your dashboard and click "Enter Requirements." Then select the **Apply For Exception** option.



If you select this option, you will need to indicate whether you are applying for an exception for an entire compliance category (for example, Hepatitis B) or a single compliance item (for example, a vaccine dose).



You will also be required to submit supporting documentation, as well as a note explaining why you believe you need an exception.

Exception Supporting Document:					
			Drop files to attach, or Browse		
Uploaded Documents:	SELECT	•			
Reason for Exception (min 1	0 characters):*				
					📕 Submit 🔀 Cancel

Once you've entered the information, click **Submit** to finish applying for the exception.



**IMPORTANT:** 

**NOT ALL SCHOOLS** 

ALLOW FOR EXCEPTIONS!

### 2.4. Tracking Your Compliance Status

Your compliance status is tracked both overall and requirement-by-requirement.

Your overall compliance status is summarized at the top of your dashboard.

### Overall Compliance Status Not Compliant 🔇 (7/11 Compliant)

You can also view the status of individual compliance requirements on your dashboard. The symbol to the left of the requirement name indicates the current status.

	Varicella	<b>GREEN CHECKMARK</b> = Compliant
	🔇 Tuberculosis	<b>RED X</b> = Incomplete/Non-Compliant
	😪 Influenza	<b>BLUE CHECKMARK</b> = Approved by Exception or Override
	! Hepatitis B	<b>YELLOW EXCLAMATION POINT</b> = Pending Review (i.e., if all submitted items are approved, you will become Compliant)
	O Physical Exam	<b>GRAY SEMICIRCLE</b> = Optional/Non-Required
1	7	•

Complio also sends you **email notifications** whenever there is a change to your compliance status, whenever a submission is rejected, or whenever items are set to expire soon. Keep an eye out for Complio notifications, as they will contain important information that will help you become, and stay, compliant!

© American DataBank 2020

### **3 Background Screening**

### 3.1. Criminal Background Checks

If you need to order a criminal background check in Complio, you will need to select the appropriate background check package when placing your order. Your institution may have various options, so make sure you select the correct one(s).

Screening	
Employment Verification (\$8.00)	This package costs \$8.00. View Package Details
Criminal Background Check – Under 21 Years (\$35.00)	This package costs \$35.00. <u>View Package Details</u>
Criminal Background Check – 21 Years and Older (\$43.00)	This package costs \$43.00. <u>View Package Details</u>
VECHS In State Students (\$57.00)	This package costs \$57.00. <u>View Package Details</u>
10 Panel Drug Screening (\$31.00)	This package costs \$31.00. <u>View Package Details</u>

If you don't know which background screening package to order, contact your school to confirm what your program requires.

# 🚹 IMPORTANT! 🥂

When you order a background check, the personal information you enter on your Complio profile will be used **EXACTLY AS ENTERED** to process the check. Be sure to double-check your personal information, as this information **CANNOT BE EDITED** once your order is placed. If you place a background screening order and your personal information is entered incorrectly—even if the error is just a small typo your school may require you to order another background check entirely.

		17
True	Company Name*	
		Please enter Company Name
	Country	UNITED STATES
	_	
Select	Postal Code	Select
Please enter City		
	Your Position/Title	
	Select	Select Please enter City

If your background check includes any services that require additional information, such as education verifications, employment verifications, or personal reference checks, you will be prompted to enter the relevant information.

Most background checks are completed within 1-2 business days, but this can depend on what services are included in the check.

When your background check is complete, the results report will automatically be uploaded into your Complio account. You can view the report in your Background Screening tab or from your Document Library. The report will also be emailed to you directly.

Order Number       Order Date       Institution Hierarchy       Payment Type       Amount Status       Payment Status       Order Status       Background Screening         20883-4953       01/16/2018       SD Nursing and Allied Health Svc Ed       SD Nursing and Allied Health Svc Ed       Money       \$45.00       Paid       Completed       View Result         20883-4953       01/16/2018       Consortium Cosortium       Money Order       \$45.00       Paid       Completed       View Result         20883-4953       01/16/2018       Amira Costa College > Student > LVN       SD Nursing and Allied Health Svc Ed Consortium > Other > Student > Lab Tech         Mame: Test, Kyle W       Ordered TD: 1908-1079       Ordered TD: 1908-1079       Ordered Consortium > Other > Student > Lab Tech         Mame: Test, Kyle W       Ordered TD: 1908-1079       Denver, CO 8002       Email: Winter *SDConsortium@Americandatabank.cor         If you have any questions about your report, including disputes of the results,       School Name: 123       No flags at this time         This report includes the following categories of information: of the results,       This report includes the following categories of information: Criminal Background Check and Drug Screening	NumberOrder DateHierarchySD Nursing and Allied Health SvcSD Nursing and Allied Health Svc20883-495301/16/2018Consortium Costa College > Student >	Type Money		Status	Status	Screening
20883-4953       01/16/2018 11:14 AM       and Allied Health Svc Ed Consortium Order Costa College > Student > LVN       Money Order       \$45.00       Paid       Completed       View Result         Money       Student > LVN       Order       Student > LVN       Student > LVN       Money       Student > LVN       Student > LVN       Student > Student > LVN       Student > Student > LVN       Student > Student > LVN       Student > Student > Lab Tech         Mame: Test, Kyle W       Ordered On: 11/13/2017 10:951 PM Address: 1016 16th Denver, CO 8002       Denver, CO 8002         If you have any questions about your report, including disputes       Tis report includes the following categories of information: Criminel Background Check and Drug Screening	and Allied Health Svc Ed 20883-4953 01/16/2018 Consortiun 11:14 AM > Mira Costa College > Student >	n Money	\$45.00	Paid	Completed	View Result
If you have any questions about your report, including disputes       School Name: 123         If you have any guestions about your report, including disputes       No flags at this time	LVN					om 🗸
	questions about your report,		Nar DC SS Order I Order State	SD Nursing at ne: Test, Kyle W DB: 1/1/#### NI: ###.##.9265 D: 19608-1079 US: Completed 123 This repo	No fla rt includes the followir	Ordered On: 11/13/2017 1:09:51 PM Address: 110 E 16th Denver, CO 80202 Email: kwhittier +SDConsortium@Americandatat Order Completed Date: 1/10/2018 7:59:59 AM gs at this time

### 3.2. Drug Screening

If your background check includes an electronic drug screening registration, you will be prompted to select a drug screening location during the order process.

To select a drug screening location, enter a ZIP code in the collection site locator.



This will bring up a list of collection sites within a certain radius of the entered ZIP code. You can enter your home ZIP code, or, if preferable, a different ZIP code (such as the code for where you work or go to school). Once the list appears, select your preferred location.

COVID-19 NOTICE: collection site to verif	Collection Sites may be subject to closure or decre y operating hours.	eased availa	ability. Please cal	l the
<ul> <li>76 PROSPECT</li> <li>CAMBRIDGE, M</li> <li>QUEST PREFEI</li> <li>2.45 miles</li> </ul>	IA 02139	<b>Q</b>	Select >	
<ul> <li>319 LONGWOO BOSTON, MA 02 QUEST</li> <li>2.80 miles</li> </ul>	D AVE FIRST FLOOR, SUITE 1 2115	<b>Q</b>	Select >	
<ul> <li>230 WILLIAM F. BOSTON, MA 0 QUEST PB 3.02 m<sup>2</sup></li> </ul>		or LabCo later deci le, your re ternate lo	rp). If you de that a egistration ocation is	

### TIP:

Try to drink no more than 8 oz. of water in the 2 hours prior to providing your drug screening specimen. An excess of water in your urine sample can dilute the specimen, affecting the results of the screening. If your drug screening comes back with dilute results, you may be required to order another drug screening.

Drug screening results typically are returned within 1-3 business days after the specimen is provided. If further testing is needed on your specimen, the results may take longer to come back.

Drug screening results will automatically be uploaded into your Complio account. You will also receive a copy of the results by email.

### 3.3. Fingerprinting

If your background check includes fingerprinting, **you will receive instructions via email** once your order has been placed.

It's important that you follow these instructions exactly as written, as agencies that process fingerprint searches often have very strict procedures in place. If you have any questions about your fingerprinting order or about the instructions you have received, please contact us for assistance.

Fingerprinting protocols vary from state to state and agency to agency, so be sure to read the instructions carefully. Some fingerprinting protocols can take several weeks to process, so you'll want to make your fingerprinting appointment **as soon as possible** after placing your order.



### **Frequently Asked Questions**

### I used to have a Complio account for a school I previously attended. Can I use the same email to create a new account for my current school?

Yes. When you create your new account, you will be asked to link your two accounts. Once you've linked your accounts, you'll be able to switch between them freely, as needed.

#### I placed an order, but it doesn't show up in my account yet. Why is that?

Your school may have an alternative payment method set up. For example, some schools review all orders, meaning your order will only be processed once a school administrator clears it. Another reason could be that you selected the Money Order payment option, in which case your order will be cleared for processing once American DataBank receives payment. Check the order details from your Complio account to confirm the payment method used on your order.



# All my immunizations are recorded on a single document. Can I use that document for all of my immunization requirements?

Yes. You will still need to submit this document individually for each requirement, but the system allows you to reuse the same document as many times as necessary.

© American DataBank 2020

### I submitted my document for review, but the compliance indicator still shows a red X for "Incomplete." Why doesn't it show Pending Review?

The Pending Review icon (a yellow circle with a red exclamation point) only displays once you have submitted everything you need to submit to become compliant. For example, if you are required to submit 2 doses of a vaccine for an immunization requirement, and you've only submitted 1 dose, the category will still be considered Incomplete. Check the requirement explanation for the category to make sure you've submitted everything you need.

#### I need to apply for an exception, but the option isn't available. Why not?

Not all schools allow for exceptions. Please note, this is purely at the discretion of the school; American DataBank cannot allow you to apply for an exception if your school has chosen to remove the option. If you believe you need an exception anyway, please contact your school administrators.

# I have to complete a drug screening, but I already know that I have a prescription that could result in a positive test. What should I do?

If the screening reveals the presence of the tested substances in your specimen, the Medical Review Officer (MRO) will attempt to contact you directly, up to 3 times, by phone. The MRO may ask you to provide additional information, such as prescription information, that would explain the presence of any flagged substances. After speaking with you, the MRO will finalize and release the results of your drug screening.

#### My drug screening registration expired. Can I get an extension?

Typically, drug screening extensions are **NOT available**. If you believe your situation warrants an exception, please contact your school administrator for written approval.

# I've finished my program, but I keep getting notifications from Complio. How do I stop these notifications?

To stop receiving notifications from Complio, you will need to mark yourself as Graduated. To mark yourself as graduated, navigate to your Order History page. Click "**View Details**" on your compliance tracking subscription. On the details screen, select the "I have graduated" option. Please note, this will also prevent your school from seeing your compliance information.

Graduated Status:

I have graduated I have not yet graduated

#### Who has access to my personal information in Complio? Is my information secure?

Complio is a secure, HIPAA- and FERPA-compliant system. All data is encrypted and your personally identifiable information (PII) is never shared without your consent. Only authorized administrators will have access to your compliance information. If you ever call in to our Applicant Success Team, a representative will ask for identifying information first, in order to confirm your identity before discussing any details about your profile; additionally, as a rule, we only discuss student profiles with the students themselves.

## Student/Applicant Support

Still have questions? Our Applicant Success Team is here to help!

### Reach us by:

Email.	complia@amaricandatabank.com
<u>Email</u> :	complio@americandatabank.com
	Responds within 1 business day
<u>Phone</u> :	(800) 200-0853
Hours:	7am-6pm MT Mon-Fri; 8am-5pm MT Sat
<u>Live Chat</u> :	Accessible through your Complio account
Hours:	7am-6pm MT Mon-Fri; 8am-5pm MT Sat
<u>Mail</u> :	110 16 <sup>th</sup> Street
	Suite 800
	Denver, CO 80202
	(???) নি
erican DataBank 20	